An Expanded Study on the Gurulé Family

Correcting Erroneous Information on the Internet
By Angela Lewis

I've been working on the Gurulé families since 1998 -- that's when I got bit by the
genealogy bug. My grandmother, Rafaela Gurulé (born in 1891 in Albuquerque), was easy to
trace and I really lucked out as the Gurulé family was well documented in the church records. 1
fell in love with genealogy; however, I think I went a little crazy. I starting extracting every
single Gurulé record that I could find. Ijust knew sooner or later that they would all just match
together, like one huge puzzle.

Since | was so new, my ears were open to all the advice I could get. I always remember
one researcher telling me, "never trust what you find on-line. You don't know if the person who
posted the information knew what they were doing." So one of my earliest lessons in genealogy
was to obtain and note source material.

That brings me to Juan Andres Gurulé. You see, Juan Andres Gurul¢ is one of millions
of entries in the Mormon Church’s database (http.//www. FamilySearch.org). This database is
the biggest collection of on-line records, but many people don’t realize that it contains errors.

I'love helping people, and every now and then somebody contacts me who traces back to
Juan Andres Gurulé. Oh no, here we go again. I already know what’s going to happen because |
know where the error is found — it’s in the Mormons’ database.

The record, submitted by Richard Marquez of Rio Rancho, NM, shows that “Andres or
Juan Gurulé” was born in 1773 in Belen, NM, went on to have a long life married to Pasquala
Griego. This record also shows that Andres Gurulé was the son of Serafin Gurulé and Maria
Gertrudis Aragon. Serafin was the grandson of Jacques Grolet (aka Santiago Gurulé) -- see
genealogy report.

This record doesn’t match my records which show that Juan Andres Gurulé died as a
baby and did not leave a family.

This past year, I decided to contact Mr. Marquez to try to correct the records. Trust me;
it’s not easy to tell someone that their genealogy research is wrong. The submitter was really
nice, but basically told me, “Prove me wrong.” I told him that if I did, would he retract the error
from the Mormons’ database? He said yes. Below is the baptism record for Juan Andres
Gurulé, and then his death record 8 days later.
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Juan Andres, espanc;l baptlsm record, but noted under left margin, “murio” (died).
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Juan Andres, espafiol, died, parbulo son of Seraﬁn Vrulem and Maria Getrudes de Aragon

My efforts to correct this error have proved fruitless. Months later, I can only say that the
Mormons refuse to change their database. Their response to me has been “submit another tree
with the correct information.” This doesn’t help with the incorrect record that’s in their
database. Unfortunately, it also means that 'm going to get contacted in the future, again, by the
next person who finds this Juan Andres Gurulé. I can’t tell you who he was as I never found his
parents, but I know who he wasn’t.

If I find an error in other databases such as the Great New Mexico Database, it is easy to
contact the webmaster, point out the error, present the new evidence, and the error is corrected.

I’ve got a beautiful website that was built in 2000 by Leon Moya (a Gurulé descendant)
who lives in New South Wales, Australia. The website, Attp.//www. GuruleFamily.org,
documents the main Gurulé descendants originating in La Rochelle, France, and also 13 other
lines, including some of the Indian lines with the Gurulé surname. Over the years, my collection
of Gurulé records continues to grow. I give full credit for the early Gurulé research to Virginia
Olmsted, a well-known Albuquerque genealogist who passed in 1991. She documented her
findings in her article, “Grolet-Gurulé: Los Franceses of Nueva Mexico,” published in the
National Genealogical Society Quarterly, March 1987, Volume 75, Number 1.

I’ve taken her material, fixed a few things, and expanded it. I don't have everything
posted on my website, but the information that is posted contains source documentation. I'm
always more than willing to help anybody. Am I perfect? Oh no, not by any means. But at least
I can tell you how I came up with a family’s connection. I love helping people, especially those
who trace back to the Gurulé’s. Contact me at Angela@USRoots.com.



As genealogical research has progressed in many ways, with the extraction and
publication of new material, one of the newest forms of searching is through DNA testing. The
New Mexico DNA Project has been obtaining DNA samples from people throughout the world
and as more people test, we will probably find more information on the Gurulé family.

Descendants of Santiago Gurulé & Elena Gallegos
Generation No. 1

1. Santiago® Gurulé (Yvon' Grolet) was born about 1663 in La Rochelle, Kingdom of
France, and died about 1711 in Bernalillo, New Mexico. He married Elena Gallegos on 9 Dec
1699 in Bernalillo, New Mexico, daughter of Antonio Gallegos and Catalina Baca. She was
born about 1680 in Bernalillo, New Mexico, and died 21 Sep 1731 in Bernalillo, New Mexico.

Notes for Santiago Gurulé:

[Olmsted's research] Baptized Jacques Grolet at the Church of St. Jean, La Rochelle, Kingdom
of France. He came to the New World as a member of the La Salle Expedition of 1685-1687,
with two other members of the La Salle expedition (Pedro Meusnier and Juan L'Archiveque).
The three men were "lost" for five years among the Indians, and then sent to Spain by order of
the Viceroy, the Conde de Galve. Afier returning to New Spain, the three men came up to New
Mexico with the Captain Cristoval de Velasco/Fray Francisco Farfan expedition to re-conquer
the Kingdom of New Mexico from the rebellious Indians, arriving in Santa Fe on 23 Jun 1694.

The three Frenchmen had been imprisoned in Cadiz, Spain, until their release in 1692. The
conditions of their release required that they become Spanish citizens and return to Nueva
Espafia. At Mexico City, these Frenchmen either requested, or were ordered, by the Viceroy to
accompany the colonizing expedition bound for New Mexico. The French name, Grole or
Grolet, soon evolved into Gurulé, and this was further Hispanicized by 19th century Padres into
Guruled; the spelling went back midway to the present Gurulé.

Notes for Elena Gallegos:

[Olmsted's research] Elena drafted her will, 1 May 1731, leaving the bulk of her property to her
only son and heir, Antonio Gurulé. Opening her will with the customary professions of faith, she
requested that she be buried in the parish church of the villa of Albuquerque, garbed in the robes
of the order of St. Francis, and she asked that her funeral be "most humble because of my being a
poor widow." The will was offered for probate on 6 Feb 1732, but the burial registers of the
Albuquerque church (film #16645) carry a cryptic entry that suggests she died some five months
earlier: "21 Sep 1731 -- buried the widow Elena"

Marriage Notes for Santiago Gurulé and Elena Gallegos:

1699, Nov. 9 (no. 5), San Felipe, Bemalillo. SANTIAGO GROLE, native of La Rothela in the
French Realms, baptized in the church of St. Jean, son of Yvon Grole and Maria Odon (Odoe ?),
both deceased, and dofia Elena Gallegos (19), native of Bernalillo, daughter of Antonio Gallegos
and dofa Catarina Baca. Groom left France in company of the General Marshall de la Salle in
search of continental region bordering on New France; was captive of infidel Indians for 5 years;
then went to Spain by order of Viceroy Conde de Galve; back in Mexico City, he then came to
New Mexico as a settler. Witnesses: Pedro de Chaves, notary; Pedro Meusnier (26), native of




Paris in France who knew groom for 15 years; Juan de Archibec (27), native of Ballona in
France who also knew groom for 15 years; Baltasar Romero, Pedro Lopez, Felipe Gutierrez (40),
Mestizo. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 780]

Child of Santiago Gurulé and Elena Gallegos is:
+ 2 i. Antonio® Gurulé, baptized 2 Apr 1703 in Bernalillo, New Mexico; died 18 Apr
1761.

Generation No. 2

2. Antonio’ Gurulé (Santiagoz, Yvon' Grolet) was baptized 2 Apr 1703 in Bernalillo, New
Mexico, and died 18 Apr 1761. He married Antonia Quintana 27 Jul 1718 in Bernalillo, New
Mexico, daughter of Jose Quintana and Antonia Lujan Dominguez. She was born about 1702.

Enumerated in the 1750 census — NM, Villa de Albuquerque (page 75)

Antonio Gurulé (Spanish, 1705, age 45), Antonia Quintana (Spanish, 1705, age 45), Juan
Antonio (1733, age 17), Fabiana (1734, age 16), Seraphin (1739, age 11), Elena (1741, age 9),
Francisca (1743, age 7), Manuela (1746, age 4); servant: Rosa (Indian, 1710, age 40), Juan
(1732, age 18), Juan (1738, age 12), Antonio (1742, age 8), Mathias (1744, age 6), Tomas (1746,
age 4); Servant: Bernardina (Indian, 1720, age 30), Maria Antonia (1734, age 16), Ygnacio
(1739, age 11), Joseph (1741, age 9), Josepha (1744, age 6), Maria (1747, age 3)

[Olmsted's research] Antonio Gurulé, probably born shortly before his baptism on 2 Apr 1703,
married at age 18 to Antonia Quintana, age 16, daughter of Jose Quintana (a neighbor and one
of the witnesses to Elena Gallegos' will) by Quintana's wife Antonia Lujan Dominguez; he died
18 Apr 1761. When Antonio made his will, he stated that he had been married to Antonia
Quintana for 40 years and were the parents of nine children (all were named in the document).

Children of Antonio Gurulé and Antonia Quintana are:

+ 3 i. Maria Manuela® Gurulé, born about 1722; died before 5 Mar 1757 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico.

+ 4 ii. Tomas Gurulé, born about 1725; died 28 Dec 1786 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico.

+ 5 iii. Luisa de Jesus Gurulg, baptized 27 Jun 1731 in Albuquerque, New Mexico; died
10 Apr 1776 in Albuquerque, New Mexico.

+ 6 iv. Juan Antonio Gurulé, baptized 1 Jun 1733 in Albuquerque, New Mexico; died in
Las Huertas, New Mexico.

+ 7 v. Fabiana Gurulé, baptized 22 Jan 1736 in Albuquerque, New Mexico; died before
Jul 1779.

+ 8 vi. Serafino Gurulé, born about 1740; died 8 Mar 1792 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico.

+ 9 vii. Elena Gurulé, born about 1741 in Bernalillo, New Mexico.

+ 10 wviii. Maria Francisca Gurulé, baptized 9 Oct 1743 in Albuquerque, New Mexico; died
after 1793.

+ 11 ix. Manuelita Gurulé, born about 1746 in Albuquerque, New Mexico.



Generation No. 3

3. Maria Manuela* Gurulé (Antonio3, Santiagoz, Yvon' Grolet) was bom about 1722, and
died before 5 Mar 1757 in Albuquerque, New Mexico’. She married Baltazar Griego on 20
Mar 1737 in San Felipe de Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico son of Juan Griego and
Juliana Saiz. He was born about 1718 and was widowed of Ysabel Jaramillo at the time of this
marriage.

Enumerated in the 1750 census — NM, Villa de Albuquerque (page 75)

Balthazar Griego (Spanish, 1728, age 32), Manuela (Spanish, 1721, age 29), Domingo (1741,
age 9), Rosalia (1743, age 7), Pasqual (1745, age 5), Antonia (1747, age 3), Paulina (1750, age
one month); servant: Maria Antonia (Indian, 1741, age 9)

Children of Maria Manuela Gurulé and Baltazar Griego are:
12 i. Domingo’ Griego, born about 1741; died before Jun 1781. He married Josefa
Fulgencia Gallegos 20 Jan 1763 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™ daughter of
Nicolas Gallegos and Ysabel Jaramillo; she was baptized 27 Feb 1735 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico”.

Marriage Notes for Domingo Griego and Josefa Gallegos:

1763, Jan. 20 (no. 18), Albuquerque. Domingo Griego (21), Espafiol, son of Capt. Baltasar
Griego and Manuela Gurulé Olvin, deceased, and Josefa Gallegos (18), Espafiola, daughter of
Nicolas Gallegos and Ysabel Jaramillo. Witnesses: Felipe Jacobo Romero, notary; Don Tomas
Francisco Duran y Chaves (44), Antonio Candelaria (53). [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots
Ltd., page 761]

13 ii. Rosalia Griego, born about 1743.

14 iii.  Pascual Griego, born about 1744.

15 iv. Rafael Antonio Griego, baptized 29 Jun 1745 in Albuquerque, New Mexico’. He
married Ana Maria Lopez on 15 Jun 1769 in San Felipe de Neri Church,
Albuquerque, New Mexico®'; she was baptized 17 Jul 1747 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico daughter of Diego Lopez and Juana Candelaria®; she died before Sep
1839.

Marriage Notes for Rafael Griego and Ana Maria Lopez:

1769, Sep 12 (no. 21), Albuquerque. Rafael Antonio Griego (27), son of Baltasar Griego and
Manuela Gurulé (deceased), Espafioles, and Ana Maria Lopez (22), daughter of Diego Lopez and
Juana Candelaria. Witnesses: Isidro Sanchez, notary; Jose Arias (39), Miguel Candelaria (44).
[Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 762]

16 v. Antonia Griego, baptized 22 Jan 1748 in Albuquerque, New Mexico’. She
married Salvador Gallegos on 3 Mar 1764 in San Felipe de Neri Church,
Albuquerque, New Mexico® son of Nicolas Gallegos and Ysabel Jaramillo; he
was born about 1739 in New Mexico.



Notes for Antonia Griego: In her baptism record, Antonia was listed as a male, however no
other males have been found by this name and her age is consistent with other records.

Marriage Notes for Antonia Griego and Salvador Gallegos:

1764, Jun 20 (no. 1, 7), Albuquerque. Salvador Jaramillo (25), Espafiol, no parents given, and
Antonia Griego (15), Espafiola, daughter of Captain Baltasar Griego and Manuela Gurulé,
deceased. Witnesses: Felipe Jacobo Romero, notary; Juan Candelaria (70), who says that
Antonia Dominguez, great-grandmother of the bride, and Leonor Dominguez, groom's
grandmother, were sisters; Francisco Perea (54), Jose Apodaca (42). Note: Salvador used his
mother's surname on this record. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 856].

17 vi. Paulina Griego, baptized 28 Jun 1750 in Albuquerque, New Mexico®. She
married Jose Antonio Lopez on 19 May 1777 in San Felipe de Neri Church,
Albuquerque, New Mexico® son of Diego Lopez and Juana Candelaria; he was
baptized 17 Feb 1752 in Albuquerque, New Mexico’.

Marriage Notes for Paulina Griego and Jose Antonio Lopez:

1777, May 10 (no. 13), Albuquerque. Jose Antonio Lopez (21), Espafiol, son of Diego Lopez,
deceased, and Juana Candelaria, and Maria Griego, Espafiola, daughter of Baltasar Griego and
Manuela Gurulé. Witnesses: Manuel de Arteaga, notary; Buenaventura Lopez (56), Diego
Gonzales (48), Martin Apodaca (43). [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 924]

18  vii. Juan Bautista Griego, baptized 23 Jun 1752 in Albuquerque, New Mexico®. He
married Maria Manuela Ortega on 4 Dec 1777 in San Felipe de Neri Church,
Albuquerque, New Mexico® son of Jose Antonio Ortega and Maria Apodaca;
she was born about 1762.

Marriage Notes for Juan Griego and Maria Ortega:

1777, Nov. 20 (no. 14), Albuquerque. Juan Bautista Griego (16), Espaiiol, son of Baltasar
Griego and Isabel (no surname), and Maria Manuela Ortega (15), Espafiola, daughter of Jose
Antonio Ortega, deceased, and Maria Apodaca. Witnesses: Manuel de Arteaga, notary;
Cristobal Sedillo (53), Felipe Apodaca (60), Jose Saavedra (25). [Prenuptial Investigations - NM
Roots Ltd., page 763]

4. Tomas® Gurulé (Antonio’, Santiago®, Yvon' Grolet) was born about 1725, and died 28
Dec 1786 in Albuquerque, New Mexico. He married Maria Pasquala Griego on 19 Sep 1743
in San Felipe de Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico™ daughter of Juan Griego and Juliana
Saiz. She was born about 1728, and died before 25 May 1785 in Albuquerque, New Mexico”’.

Enumerated in the 1750 census — NM, Villa de Albuquerque (page 75)
Tomas Gurulé (Spanish, 1725, age 25), Pasquala Griego (Spanish, 1728, age 22), Usebio (1744,
age 6), Juan Pablo (1747, age 3)

Children of Tomas Gurulé and Maria Pascuala Griego are:
19 i. Eusebio’ Gurulé, baptized 10 Mar 1745 in Albuquerque, New Mexico'’; died
after Mar 1785. He married Maria Ylaria Montafio on 5 Jul 1764 in San Felipe



de Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico™ daughter of Antonio Montafio and
Maria Francisca Casias; she was baptized 24 Feb 1745 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico’’; she died before 17 Mar 1785 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™.

20 ii. Juan Pablo Gurulé, baptized 28 Jan 1748 in Albuquerque, New Mexico”. He
married Beatris Santillanes; she was born between 1763 - 1767.

Enumerated in the 1803-1807 census, NM, Las Huertas:
Juan Gurulé (1752, age 55), Beatris Santillanes (1767, age 40), Maria del Carmen (1795, age
12), and Rafael (1801, age 6, listed in same household)

21 iii. Bernabe Antonio Gurulé, baptized 18 Jun 1752 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™.
He married (1) Juana Tomasa Gutierrez on 14 Feb 1777 in San Felipe de Neri
Church, Albuquerque, New Mexic087; she was born about 1762 daughter of
Francisco Xavier Gutierrez and Rosa Miranda. She died before Sep 1781 when
Bernabe married (2) Maria Monica Montoya on 8 Sep 1781 in Church of San
Antonio de Sandia, Bemalillo, New Mexicogg; she was born about 1766.

Marriage Notes for Bernabe Gurulé and Juana Gutierrez:

1777, Feb. 6 (no. 6), Albuquerque. Bernabe Antonio Gurulé, Espafiol, son of Tomas Gurulé and
Maria Pascuala Griego, and Juana Tomasa Gutierrez (15), Espafiola, daughter of Francisco
Xavier Gutierrez and Rosa Miranda, deceased. Witnesses: Manuel de Arteaga, notary; Cristobal
Gonzales (25), Juan Rafael Pacheco (60), Vicente Duran (40). [Prenuptial Investigations - NM
Roots Ltd., page 781]

[Olmsted’s research] Bernabe was a farmer, living in Albuquerque, Santa Fe, and Bernalillo
before finally settling in Las Huertas, as confirmed by census and church records.

Enumerated in the 1790 census — NM, Villa de Santa Fe (page 75)
Bemabe Gurulé (Spanish, 40, native of Tome, farmer), Monica Sandoval (Mestiza, 20); 2 sons
O,7)

22 iv. Maria de los Reyes Gurulé, baptized 6 Jan 1755 in Albuquerque, New Mexico”.

23 v. Antonia Gurulé, died 2 Oct 1755 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™.

24 vi. Pedro Bautista de Jesus Gurulé, baptized 5 Feb 1766 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico’”. He married Maria Dolores Duran on 2 Nov 1786 in San Felipe de
Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico®’; she was born about 1764 in Las
Huertas, New Mexico.

[Angela’s note] 1t should be noted that no conclusive proof exists for the marriage of Pedro
Bautista to Dolores Duran. The time, place and notation from Olmsted’s research lead to this
conclusion.

Enumerated in the 1790 census — NM, Bemalillo County, Albuquerque, Plaza #7
Pedro Gurulé (coyote, 1765, age 25, spinner), Maria Dolores Duran (Mestiza, 1764, age 26), two
sons (ages 7 and 2)



Enumerated in the 1803-1807 census, NM, Las Huertas
Pedro Gurulé (1767, age 40), Dolores Duran (1764, age 43), Juan Jose (1791, age 16), Juan
Cristobal (1796, age 12)

5. Luisa de Jesus® Gurulé (Antonio’, Santiago”, Yvon' Grolet) was baptized 27 Jun 1731 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico®, and died 10 Apr 1776 in Albuquerque, New Mexico”’. She
married Tadeo Garcia de Noriega on 24 Apr 1746 in San Felipe de Neri Church, Albuquerque,
New Mexico® son of Vicente Garcia de Noriega and Catarina Gonzales.

[Olmsted’s research] By 1750, Luisa and Tadeo were living next door to Luisa's parents, who
apparently thought much of this son-in-law, since Antonio Gurulé named his daughter's husband
as his co-executor and called him "my son." No record has been found of the death of either
Luisa or Tadeo, although it is known that he preceded her in death; on 15 May 1775, his widow
and a son were padrinos at a family baptism.

Children of Luisa Gurulé and Tadeo Garcia de Noriega are:
25 i. Ysidro® Garcia, baptized 21 May 1747 in Albuquerque, New Mexico”’; died
before Feb 1777. He married Juana Barbara Aragon on 14 Dec 1769 in San
Felipe Mission, New Mexico® daughter of Andres Aragon and Elena Duran y
Chaves

[Olmsted’s research] Married briefly to Ysidro Garcia, who died before 15 Feb 1777, because
she is shown, along with Miguel Antonio Gamboa, as subjects of a premarital investigation as
preparation for their proposed wedding. Gamboa was the widower of her husband'’s sister,
Maria Rosa Garcia.

26 ii. Gerardo Cristobal Garcia, baptized 14 Dec 1749 in Albuquerque, New Mexico”;
died before 1790. He married Maria Ana Santillanes; she died before 1790.

27 iii. Pablo Garcia, baptized 25 Jan 1752 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™.

28 iv. Antonio Vicente Garcia, baptized 10 Nov 1754 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™;
died before Oct 1804. He married Maria Francisca Chavez; she died before Oct
1804.

29 v. Maria Rosalia Garcia, baptized 17 Apr 1757 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™;
died 5 Apr 1776 in Albuquerque, New Mexico. She married Miguel Antonio
Gamboa on 24 Oct 1772 in Albuquerque, New Mexico® son of Agustin Gamboa
and Manuela Lucero; he was born about 1742.

Marriage Notes for Maria Garcia and Miguel Gamboa:

1772, Oct. 24 (no. 15), Albuquerque. Miguel Antonio Gamboa (30), Espafiol, son of Agustin
Gamboa, deceased, and Manuela Lucero, and Maria Rosalia Garcia de Noriega (12), Espafiola,
d. of Tadeo Garcia de Noriega and Luisa Gurulé. Witnesses: Felipe Jacobo Romero, notary;
Andres Antonio Romero (43), Francisco Cordova (45) of Atrisco. [Prenuptial Investigations -
NM Roots Ltd., page 585]

6. Juan Antonio* Gurulé (Antonio3, Santiagoz, Yvon' Grolet) was baptized 1 Jun 1733 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico”’, and died in Las Huertas, New Mexico. He married Maria



Petrona Montoya on 2 Jun 1754 in Saint Francis of Assisi Church, Santa Fe, New Mexico. She
died in Las Huertas, New Mexico.

Enumerated in the 1790 — NM, Bernalillo County, Albuquerque, Plaza #7
Juan Antonio Gurulé (Mestizo, 1737, age 53, carpenter), Maria Montoya (Spanish, 1760, age
30), three sons (ages 12, 8 and 5), one daughter (age 15)

Enumerated in the 1803-1807 census at Las Huertas, New Mexico
Juan Antonio (1727, age 80), Maria Petra Montoya (1747, age 60)

[Olmsted's research] In 1775, Juan Antonio Gurulé made a rare appearance on record when he
sold some property to Domingo Romero in the Cieneguilla that had come to Maria Petrona. He
is recorded as a carpenter in the 1790 census, living next door to his brother, Serafin. Juan
Antonio was the Gurulé heir who retained the original grant documents and the wills of Elena
Gallegos and Antonio Gurulé that were displayed before the United States Court of Private
Claims to confirm the ownership of the Elena Gallegos Grant. The last record found for Juan
Antonio Gurulé and Maria Petrona Montoya is the 1803-1807 census of Las Huertas. Juan
Antonio was enumerated as being 80 and Maria as aged 60.

Children of Juan Gurulé and Maria Petrona Montoya are:

30 i. Antonio Toribio® Gurulé, baptized 6 Apr 1755 in Santa Fe, New Mexico®’; died
23 Dec 1823 in Alameda, New Mexico. He married (1) Maria Gertrudis Olguin
on 2 Nov 1777 in San Felipe de Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexicogﬁ; she
was born about 1757; died 3 Jan 1806 in Bernalillo, New Mexico”’. He married
(2) Maria Rita Mirabal on 16 Oct 1808 in San Felipe Mission, New Mexico®’,
daughter of Pedro Miguel Mirabal and Maria Gertrudis Baca; she was born about
1792 in Las Huertas, New Mexico.

[Angela’s note] Olmsted's research had identified him as the son of Tomas Gurulé and Maria
Pasquala Griego, but this was clarified with the actual baptism record found at Saint Francis of
Assisi Church.

Marriage Notes for Antonio Gurulé and Maria Olguin:
Film #16643 - Marriages - San Felipe de Neri Church (the record appeared without surnames)

Enumerated in the 1790 census — NM, Bemalillo County, Albuquerque, Plaza #7
Toribio Gurulé (Mestizo, 1758, age 32, carpenter), Maria Gertrudis Olguin (Mestiza, 1757, age
33), two sons (ages 12 and 4), two daughters (ages 8 and 3)

Enumerated in the 1803-1807 census at Las Huertas, NM
Toribio Gurulé (1754, age 53, widower), Ramon (1789, age 18), Cristiana (1791, age 16),
Micaela (1792, age 15)

Marriage Notes for Antonio Gurulé and Maria Mirabal:
1808, Oct. 2 (no. 3), Bernalillo. Toribio Gurulé (51), Espafiol of San Jose de las Huertas,
widowed of Maria Gertrudis Olguin, and Maria Rita Mirabal (16), Espafiola of the same place,




daughter of Miguel Mirabal and Gertrudis Baca. Witnesses: Jose Chaves (57) of Las Huertas,
Jose Garcia (60) of Angostura. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 784].

31 ii. Maria Manuela Gurulé, baptized 22 Apr 1757 in Albuquerque, New Mexico”.
She married Juan Pablo Chavez on 15 Feb 1775 in San Felipe Mission, New
Mexico® son of Pedro Mora and Angela Saiz.

[Angela’s note] Olmsted's research indicated she was the wife of Juan Miguel Martin, living in
the San Juan area. A search through the records at San Juan de Los Caballeros revealed this
was not the same Maria Manuela Gurulé who is the daughter of Juan Antonio Gurulé and Maria
Petrona Montoya. A marriage record found at San Felipe Mission identified the correct parents.

32 iii. Miguel de San Juan Gurulé, baptized 23 Mar 1759 in Albuquerque, New

Mexico”.

33 iv. Jose Maria Gurulé, born about 1768 in Bernalillo, New Mexico™; died before
Aug 1836. He married Maria Josefa Candelaria; born about 1776; died before
Oct 1827.

Enumerated in the 1790 census - NM, Bernalillo County, Albuquerque, Plaza #7
Jose Maria Gurulé (Mestizo, 20, sheepherder), Josefa Candelaria (Spanish, 14), one daughter

(age 1)

34 v. Vicente Gurulé, born about 1771; died 30 Sep 1846 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico. He married Maria Antonia Garcia 15 Nov 1791 in San Felipe de Neri
Church, Albuquerque, New Mexicogﬁ; died before 20 Jul 1826 in Albuquerque,
New Mexico.

[Olmsted's research] Vicente Gurulé is the son whom Juan Antonio Gurulé entrusted with the
important papers that proved the family's right to the Gallegos Grant. Their son, Juan Antonio
(born 1801) inherited the Gurulé family documents.

Enumerated in the 1802 census - NM, Plaza de Nuestra Senora de Los Rancheros
Vicente Gurulé and wife, Maria Antonia Garcia

35 vi. Maria Gertrudis Gurulé, baptized 8 Mar 1772 in Bernalillo, New Mexico31; died
before 1820. She married Antonio Maria Gonzales on 12 May 1788 in San
Felipe de Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico™; he was born about 1762 in
Alameda, New Mexico; died 27 Sep 1819 in Alameda, New Mexico™ son of
Gaspar Gonzales and Maria Josefa Martinez

Marriage Notes for Maria Gurulé and Antonio Gonzales:

1788, May 10 (no 5), Albuquerque. Antonio Maria Gonzales (24) of Alameda, son of Gaspar
Gonzales, deceased, and Maria Josefa Martinez, and Maria Gertrudis Gurulé (18), daughter of
Juan Antonio Gurulé and Maria Montoya. Witnesses: Ramon Jaramillo (68), Juan Domingo
Aragon, both of the Sandia parish; Lazaro Baca (39), Anselmo Pacheco (36). [Prenuptial
Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 713]




36  vii. Maria Guadalupe Gurulg, baptized 15 May 1775 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™.
She married Domingo Antonio Salazar on 28 Aug 1795 in San Felipe de Neri
Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico®’; he was born between 1765 - 1769; died
before Jan 1830.

Enumerated in the 1803-1807 census at Las Huertas, NM
Domingo Salazar (1769, age 38), Maria Guadalupe (1783, age 24), Maria Gertrudis (1796, age
11), Juan Cristobal (1798, age 9), Pedro Miguel (1801, age 6), Francisco Xavier (1806, age 1)

37  wviii. Jose Domingo Gurulé, born about 1780; died before 11 Jan 1821 in Albuquerque,
New Mexico™. He married Ana Maria Gonzales daughter of Manuel Gonzales
and Maria Toribia Armijo.

Notes for Jose Domingo Gurulé: Information proving lineage for this son is from a court case
dated Jan 1909, found at the New Mexico State Archives in Santa Fe. The genealogy chart was
one of several attachments to the court case - Rehenan Gilbert Papers, Exp 11, File 73, Sale
Records.

38 ix. Juan Ysidro (Lagos) Gurulé, baptized 11 Apr 1782 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico™. He married Juana Maria Padilla on 11 Oct 1802 in San Agustin de la
Isleta Church, New Mexic094; she was born in Isleta, New Mexico daughter of
Francisco Padilla and Maria Bernardina Garcia.

Marriage Notes for Juan Gurulé and Juana Padilla:

1802, Oct. 4. (no. 5a). Banns notice. Juan Isidro Gurulé of'the San Felipe district, son of Juan
Antonio Gurulé and Maria Petrona Montoya, and Juana Maria Padilla of the Isleta Parish,
daughter of Francisco Padilla and Maria Berardina Garcia. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM
Roots Ltd., page 783].

[Olmsted’s research] Juan Isidro Gurulé, born about 1785, married 4 Oct 1802, Juana Maria
Padilla, daughter of Francisco Padilla and Maria Bernardina Garcia of Isleta parish. Banns
were also announced at San Felipe where Juan Isidro was living. There were no children
recorded for this couple in the baptismal registers of the area.

[Angela’s note] Baptism records have been found for children of "Lagos" Gurulé and Juana
Maria Padilla in the San Felipe area. Until proven otherwise, assumption is made that Juan
Isidro was known as "Lagos" in the San Felipe area.

Enumerated in the 1860 census - NM, Bernalillo county, Alameda
Lagos Gurulé (1778, age 82, farmer, NM), Juana Padilla (1794, age 66, NM)

7. Fabiana® Gurulé (Antonio3, Santiagoz, Yvon' Grolet) was baptized 22 Jan 1736 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico™, and died before Jul 1779. She married Nicolas Montoya before
1752 son of Andres Montoya and Antonia Lucero de Godoy. He died before 1787.



Children of Fabiana Gurulé and Nicolas Montoya are:
39 i. Maria Andrea’ Montoya, baptized 30 Nov 1752 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™’;
died before Jul 1781. She married Jose Antonio Lucero de Godoy on 24 Aug
1766 in San Felipe Mission, New Mexico®’ son of Cristobal Lucero de Godoy
and Juana Gonzales; he was born in New Mexico.

Marriage Notes for Maria Montoya and Jose Lucero de Godoy:

1766, Jul. 12 (no. 10), Albuquerque. Jose Antonio Lucero de Godoy, Espaiiol of La Cafiada de
Cochiti, son of Cristobal Lucero de Godoy, deceased, and Juana Gonzales, and Maria Andrea
Montoya (14), Espafiola of Las Huertas, daughter of Nicolas Montoya and Fabiana Gurulé.
Witnesses: Felipe Tafoya, notary in Santa Fe; Pedro Jose Pino, notary in Albuquerque; Juan
Gonzales (40) of Alameda, Baltasar Griego (50) of Albuquerque. [Prenuptial Investigations -
NM Roots Ltd., page 969]

40 ii. Maria Pascuala de Jesus Montoya, baptized 20 Nov 1758 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico®. She married Jose Antonio Lopez about 18 Jul 1779 in Jemez Mission,
New Mexico” son of Toribio Lopez and Antonia Trujillo; he was born about
1757.

Marriage Notes for Maria Montoya and Jose Lopez:

1779, Jul 18 (no. 3), Jemez. Jose Antonio Lopez (22), Espanol of Santo Toribio del Vallecitos,
natural son of Antonia Trujillo, and Maria Pascuala de Jesus Montoya (18), Espafiola, daughter
of Nicolas Montoya and Maria Fabiana Gurulé, deceased. Witnesses: Jose Manuel Montoya,
notary; Juan Atencio (36), Pedro Lorenzo Martin (30), Felix Casados (34), Mariano Armijo (25),
all of Vallecitos. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 924]

41 iii. Ana Quiteria Montoya, born about 1760. She married (1) Diego Gallegos 4 Nov
1783 in San Felipe Mission, New Mexico® son of Ygnacio Gallegos and
Melchora Gutierrez.

[Angela’s note] Diego Gallegos appears to have died before 1791 because Ana Quiteria
Montoya is noted as the mother on a baptismal record with no father listed.

42 iv. Maria Guadalupe de Jesus Montoya, baptized 8 Jun 1761 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico™. She married (1) Juan Mariano Griego on 23 Oct 1775 in San Felipe de
Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico® son of Juan Griego and Juana Maria
Apodaca. He died before 1783 as that’s when she married (2) Juan Bautista
Chavez on 25 Jun 1783 in Santa Ana Mission, New Mexico””.

Marriage Notes for Maria Montoya and Juan Griego:

1775, Oct. 10 (no. 30), Albuquerque. Juan Mariano Griego, Espafiol, son of Juan Griego and
Juana Maria Apodaca, and Maria Guadalupe Montoya, Espafiola, daughter of Nicolas Montoya
and Fabiana Gurulé. Witnesses: Felipe Jacobo Romero, notary; Cristobal Jaramillo (58), Mateo
Gutierrez (65). [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 762]




43 v. Jose Cipriano Montoya, baptized 18 Sep 1767 in Bernalillo, New Mexico”. He
married Maria Antonia Mestas on 9 Aug 1789 in Jemez Mission, New Mexico®”’
daughter of Hilario Mestas and Josefa Lucero; she died before Feb 1820.

Marriage Notes for Jose Montoya and Maria Mestas:

1789, Aug. 9 (no. 6), Jemez. Investigation as to the relationship between Jose Montoya and
Antonia Mestas of Santo Toribio del Vallecitos. Witness Cristobal Salazar of S. Carlos de la
Alameda says that he knew their original Quintana ancestors well; they were two brothers,
Miguel Quintana of Sta. Cruz and Jose Quintana of the Rio Abajo, with the respective
descendants as follows:

Jose Quintana -------- (bros. from Mexico City) ---------- Miguel Quintana
Antonia Quintana ------------ st cousing -------=-===-mmmnmuun Lugarda Quintana
Fabiana Gurulé --------------- 2nd cousing ---------=====mmn--- Josefa Archuleta
Jose Montoya ----------------- 3rd cousins -----------------—--- Hilario Mestas

Antonia Mestas

Witness Antonio Aragon agrees with Salazar, adding that the groom was born into the arms of
his wife Barbara Sanchez; witnesses Juan Quintana and Antonia Quintana, both of Sta. Cruz,
also agree with Salazar; Victor Archuleta signs for all the witnesses. [Prenuptial Investigations -
NM Roots Ltd., page 1289]

44 vi. Bernardo Montoya, baptized 27 Dec 1769 in Bernalillo, New Mexico®.

45 vii. Juan Jose Montoya, born between 1772 - 1774 in Bemalillo, New Mexico”. He
married Maria Rita Valencia on 25 Sep 1796 in San Felipe Mission, New
Mexico™ daughter of Juan Esteban Valencia and Maria de la Luz Ortega.

Notes for Juan Jose Montoya: Two baptism records were located at San Felipe Mission - Jose
Montoya (baptized 22 Apr 1772) and Juan Jose Montoya (baptized 3 Jul 1774). Because the
later marriage records identify the groom as Juan Jose Montoya for both couples, it's not clear
which is the accurate baptism record for each.

46  viii. Juan Joseph Montoya, born between 1772 - 1774 in Bernalillo, New Mexico™.
He married Maria Guadalupe Moreno 8 Oct 1796 in San Felipe Mission, New
Mexico™ daughter of Juan Moreno and Maria Antonia Montaio.

Notes for Juan Joseph Montoya: Two baptism records were located at San Felipe Mission - Jose
Montoya (baptized 22 Apr 1772) and Juan Jose Montoya (baptized 3 Jul 1774). Because the
later marriage records identify the groom as Juan Jose Montoya for both couples, it's not clear
which is the accurate baptism record for each.

47 ix. Maria Manuela Montoya, born about 1778 in Las Huertas, New Mexico. She
married Juan Baca on 12 Oct 1802 in San Felipe Mission, New Mexico” born
about 1782 in Las Huertas, New Mexico son of Pedro Antonio Baca and Maria
Antonia Gallegos.



Marriage Notes for Maria Montoya and Juan Baca:

1802, Oct. 12 (no. 2), San Felipe. Juan Baca (20), Espafiol of Las Huertas, son of Pedro Antonio
Baca and Maria Antonia Gallegos, and Maria Manuela Montoya (19) of the same place, d. of
Nicolas Montoya and Fabiana Gurulé. Witnesses: Blas Maria Montafio (36), Alberto Montoya
(64), Jose Chavez (46), Mateo Duran (44), Bautista Chaves (39), Juan Antonio Anaya (59).
[Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 169]

48 x. Juan Cristobal Montoya, died before 6 Mar 1775 in Bernalillo, New Mexico®.

49 xi. Juan Domingo Montoya, died before Jun 1811. He married Juana Maria
Valencia on 2 Jun 1787 in Church of San Antonio de Sandia, New Mexico’”
daughter of Juan Esteban Valencia and Maria de la Luz Ortega.

8. Serafino® Gurulé (Antonio3 , Santiagoz, Yvon' Grolet) was born about 1740, and died 8
Mar 1792 in Albuquerque, New Mexico. He married Maria Gertrudis Aragon. She died
before 1 Jul 1783 in Albuquerque, New Mexico” daughter of Andres Aragon and Elena Duran y
Chaves.

Marriage Notes for Serafino Gurulé and Maria Aragon:
The marriage of Serafin and Maria was confirmed by the premarital investigation of their
daughter, Antonia Rosa.

Enumerated in the 1790 census of NM, Bernalillo County, Albuquerque, Plaza #7
Serafin Gurulé (Spanish, age 50, widower, carpenter), one son (age 14)

[Olmsted’s research] Serafin was one of the original grantees of the San Antonio de Las
Huertas Grant, and is so identified in the Court of Private Land Claims, Case No. 90. The land
was granted by Governor Don Tomas Velez Gauchupin, September 20, 1765, and proceedings
were completed 13 January 1768 by Governor and Captain General Don Pedro Fermin de
Mendinueta. The family lived at Las Huertas for a number of years, but Maria Gertrudis was
buried in Albuquerque, 1 July 1783.

Children of Serafino Gurulé and Maria Gertrudis Aragon are:
50 i. Antonia Rosa’ Gurulé, born about 1764 in Albuquerque, New Mexico; died
before 29 May 1792 in Bernalillo, New Mexico™. She married Jose Manuel
Muiiiz on 21 Oct 1782 in Albuquerque, New Mexico; born about 1759 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico/(/ son of Andres Muiiiz and Ana Maria Montoya.

Marriage Notes for Antonia Gurulé and Jose Manuel Muiiiz:

1782, Oct. 21 (nos. 42, 48), Albuquerque. Jose Manuel Muiiiz (23), Espafiol of Bernalillo, son
of Andres Muiiiz and Ana Maria Montoya, and Antonia Rosa Gurulé (18), of Los Ranchos de
Albuquerque, daughter of Serafin Gurulé and Maria Gertrudis Aragon. Witnesses: Miguel
Archibeque (48) and Jose Garcia de Noriega (35) of Bernalillo; Juan Antonio Garcia (35) and
Jose Gonzales (28) of Albuquerque. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 1360]

Enumerated in the 1790 census — NM, Bemalillo County, Albuquerque, Plaza #7



Manuel Muiiiz (Mestizo, age 30, servant), Antonia Rosa Gurulé (Mestiza, age 20), three sons
(ages 7,4 and 2)

[Angela’s note] Though the census identifies three sons born, one was actually a daughter,
Felipa, baptized in 1786 at San Juan de Los Caballeros Church.

51 ii. Maria de la Luz Gurulé, baptized 19 Mar 1767 in Bemnalillo, New Mexico”. She
married Felipe Gonzales on 30 Sep 1781 in San Felipe de Neri Church,
Albuquerque, New Mexico®®; he was born about 1752; died before Nov 1818.

Enumerated in the 1790 census — NM, Bemalillo County, Albuquerque, Plaza #7
Phelipe Gonzales (Spanish, age 38, spinner), Maria de la Luz (Mestiza, age 22), two sons (ages 6
and 3)

52 iii. Miguel Antonio Gurulé, baptized 7 Sep 1768 in Bernalillo, New Mexico®’; died
before 18 Sep 1804 in Bernalillo, New Mexico®. He married Maria Ysidora
Gallegos on 24 Oct 1788 in Church of San Antonio de Sandia, New Mexico'”
daughter of Juan Antonio Gallegos and Maria Antonia Montoya.

53 iv. Maria Juliana Gurulé, baptized 13 Jan 1771 in Bernalillo, New Mexico49; died 22
May 1845 in Albuquerque, New Mexico. She married Diego Antonio Lucero on
16 Aug 1785 in San Felipe de Neri Church, Albuquerque, New Mexico’” who
was widowed of Francisca Montoya at the time of this marriage to Juliana.

Marriage Notes for Maria Gurulé and Diego Lucero:

1785, Aug. 14 (no. 8), Albuquerque. Banns notice. Diego Antonio Lucero, Espafiol of the
Sandia Parish, widowed of Francisca Montoya, and Juliana Gurulé, Espaiola, daughter of
Serafin Gurulé and Maria Gertrudis Aragon, deceased. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots
Ltd., page 973]

Enumerated in the 1802 census — NM, Plaza de Nuestra Senora de La Alameda
Diego Antonio Lucero and Maria Juliana Gurulé

54 v. Juan Andres Gurulé, baptized 3 Dec 1773 in Bemalillo, New Mexico’ 0; died
before 11 Dec 1773 in Bernalillo, New Mexico”".

55 vi. Antonio Jose Gurulé, baptized 6 Aug 1775 in Albuquerque, New Mexico’ . He
married Maria Antonia Atencio on 15 Apr 1789 in Santa Fe, New Mexicom;
born about 1772; died 18 Sep 1827 in Albuquerque, New Mexico™. Maria
Antonia Atencio was listed as Maria Antonia Herrera in the baptism records of

their children.

Marriage Notes for Antonio Gurulé and Maria Herrera:
Enumerated in the 1802 census - NM, Plaza de Nuestra Senora de Los Rancheros, Antonio
Gurulé and wife, Maria Antonia Herrera




9. Elena* Gurulé (Antonio3, Santiagoz, Yvon' Grolet) was born about 1741 in Bernalillo,
New Mexico. She married Jose Duran y Chavez about 1765 in Bernalillo, New Mexico son of
Jose Duran y Chavez and Maria Gertrudis Sanchez. He was born 1 Jun 1733 in Bemalillo, New
Mexico, and died 9 Dec 1782 in Guadalupe EI Paso.

[Olmsted's research] Elena Gurulé was the second wife of Jose Duran y Chavez of Bernalillo,
to whom she was married about 1765. When Chavez was accidentally killed in 1783, there
ensued a lengthy succession (probate) process involving the children of his first marriage. Elena
and Jose were the parents of nine children.

In later research by Pat Sanchez Rau (Colorado), she uncovers the mystery of the first wife of
Jose Duran y Chavez in the 1783 estate settlement papers where descendants of both wives were
present. The first wife was Antonia Gurulé, most likely the daughter of Bernardina who was an
Indian servant and appears in the New Mexico 1750 census in the household of Antonio Gurulé
and Antonia Quintana. Pat Rau's article “A Further Study of Jose Duran y Chaves and His Two
Wives with Some New Conclusions”, was published by Herencia, Volume 11 Issue 4 October
2003 and is also available on the Gurulé web site.

Children of Elena Gurulé and Jose Duran y Chavez are:
56 i. Maria Manuela Sabina’ Chavez, born about 1763. She married Agustin Antonio
Archibeque on 20 May 1783 in Santa Ana Mission, New Mexico’™ son of
Antonio Domingo Archibeque and Casilda Gonzales; baptized 20 Jun 1753 in
Santa Fe, New Mexico™.

Notes for Maria Manuela Sabina Chavez: Maria's parentage was proven when she and her
brother Juan Cristobal served as padrinos, 8 Mar 1779, to a son of Juan Antonio Chavez. The
record identifies them as children of Jose Chavez and Elena Gurulé. More information is located
on Jose Esquibel's website "Beyond Origins of New Mexico Families"
(http://pages.prodigy.net/bluemountainl/beyondorigins.htm)

Enumerated in the 1750 census - NM, Santa Fe
Augustin de Archibeq; Manuela Truxillo; Antonio Archibeq; Jpha Archibeq; Miguel de
Archibeq; two children

Enumerated in the 1802 census - NM

Augustin Archiveque (1751, age 51), Manuela Chaves (1762, age 40), Matias (1789, age 13),
Gaspar (1791, age 11), Juan de Jesus (1793, age 9), Marcelino (1800, age 2), Antonia Teresa
(1787, age 15)

Enumerated in the 1818 census - NM, Sandia Neighborhood
Augustin de Archiveque (1748, age 70), Manuela Chaves (1768, age 50), Matias (1788, age 30),
Marcelino (1793, age 25), Juan (1798, age 20)

57 ii. Jose Alejandro Chavez, baptized 12 Mar 1767 in Bernalillo, New Mexico™’; died
before 27 Aug 1767 in Bemalillo, New Mexico™.



58 iii. Maria Apolonia Chavez, baptized 14 Apr 1768 in Bernalillo, New Mexico”. She
married Miguel Antonio Gonzales on 26 Feb 1783 in Santa Ana Mission, New
Mexico’” son of Marcos Toribio Gonzales and Maria de la Luz Gallegos.

59 iv. Juan Cristobal Chavez, born about 1770 in New Mexico. He married (1) Maria
Barbara Antonia Gallegos before Jan 1784 and died before 1831 in Abiquiu, NM.
He married (2) Maria Micaela Martin before 1835 daughter of Juan Domingo
Martin and Maria Paula Lujan.

Juan Cristobal Chavez is placed as a member of this family when the grandparents are named in
the Abiquiu Baptism records of his children with Maria Micaela Martin.

60 v. Maria Cecilia Chavez, baptized 28 Feb 1770 in Bernalillo, New Mexico™. She
married Juan de la Cruz Varela on 25 Mar 1788 in Bernalillo, New Mexico’” son
of Jose Mariano Varela and Rosa Gallegos; he was born about 1770 in Bernalillo,

New Mexico.

Marriage Notes for Maria Cecilia Chavez and Juan de la Cruz Varela:

1788, Mar. 25 (nos. 2-3), Bernalillo. Juan Cruz Varela (18) of Bernalillo, Sandia parish, son of
Jose Mariano Varela and Rosa Gallegos, and Maria Cecilia Chavez, of S. Francisco de
Bemalillo, Zia parish, daughter of Jose Chavez, deceased, and Elena Gurulé¢. Witnesses: Jose
Mariano Armenta (46), Mariano Perea (38). [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page
2063]

61 vi. Maria Petra Chavez, baptized 28 Apr 1772 in Bernalillo, New Mexico’; died
before 1829. She married Jose Mariano Varela on 28 Aug 1786 in Bernalillo,
New Mexico’ son of Jose Mariano Varela and Rosa Gallegos; he was born
about 1764 in Bernalillo, New Mexico; died before 1829.

Marriage Notes for Maria Petra Chavez and Jose Mariano Varela:

1786, Aug. 28 (no. 5), Bernalillo. Jose Mariano Varela (22) of S. Francisco Xavier de
Bermnalillo, Sandia parish, son of Jose Mariano Varela and Maria Rosa Gallegos, and Maria
Petrona Chavez of Bernalillo, Zia parish, daughter of Jose Chavez, deceased, and Elena Gurulé
Olvin. Witnesses: Cristobal Gutierrez (55), Pedro Gutierrez (37). [Prenuptial Investigations -
NM Roots Ltd., page 2062]

62  vii. Maria Gertrudis Chavez, baptized 17 Oct 1774 in Bernalillo, New Mexico™. She
married Jose Antonio Valdez on 2 Jun 1794 in Church of San Antonio de Sandia,
New Mexico’” son of Alonzo Valdez and Juana Nieto; he died before 1837.

63  viii. Maria Angela Chavez, born 18 Jul 1777 and baptized 23 Aug 1777 in Bernalillo,
New Mexico?.

64 ix. Antonio Eduardo Chavez, born Apr 1779 in Bernalillo, New Mexicoﬁz; died
before 1783.

65 X. Ysidro Antonio Chavez, born 14 May 1781 and baptized 21 May 1781 in
Bernalillo, New Mexico™. He married Maria Jacinta Lujan on 17 May 1802 in
Church of San Antonio de Sandia, New Mexico’” daughter of Felix Lujan and
Teodora Romero; born in Bernalillo, New Mexico.



10. Maria Francisca® Gurulé (Antonio®, Santiago®, Yvon' Grolet) was baptized 9 Oct 1743
in Albuquerque, New Mexico™, and died after 1793. She married Diego Felipe Vasquez
Borrego about 1758 in Jemez Mission, Bernalillo, New Mexico son of Diego Vasquez Borrego
and Catalina Gutierrez. He was born about 1738 in Bernalillo, New Mexico, and died after
1790.

[Olmsted' research] Diego and Maria's eldest son gave his age as 25 during a premarital
investigation at Santa Cruz, in 1784, prior to his union with Maria Viviana Sandoval of
Quemado. Many of the children of this couple were baptized at San Felipe while they were
living on Borrego property at San Isidro. Their two youngest children were baptized at San
Juan after they moved to the Rio Arriba country. According to Spanish Archives of New Mexico,
Series 1, Diego Borrego was involved in a number of civil suits--a lawsuit with Juan Ignacio
Mestas, in 1772, a dispute with Juana Maria Baca over land at Cuyamungue, and a suit against
him by Mariano Peria, in 1799, over stock due him under contract. No death records are
available on the couple.

Children of Maria Gurulé and Diego Borrego are:
66 i. Diego Antonio’ Borrego, born about 1761 in Chimayo, New Mexico. He
married Maria Vibiana Sandoval on 2 Sep 1784 in Santa Cruz de la Cafiada
Church, New Mexico daughter of Cayetano Sandoval and Ysabel Martin; born
about 1756 in Quemado, New Mexico.

Marriage Notes for Diego Borrego and Maria Sandoval:

1784, Aug 21 (no. 14), Santa Cruz. Diego Antonio Vasquez Borrego (23) of El Potrero de
Chimayo, son of Diego Felipe Vasquez Borrego and Francisca Gurulé, Espafoles, and Maria
Vibiana Sandoval (28) of San Antonio de Padua del Pueblo Quemado, daughter of Cayetano
Sandoval and Isabel Martin, Espafioles. Witnesses: Cristobal Sangil, Juan Pascual Mondragon
(26), Antonio Mondragon (32), Cristobal Mondragon (30) of Pueblo Quemado. [Prenuptial
Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 236]

67 ii. Juan Domingo Borrego, born 29 Jun 1763 and baptized 4 Jul 1763 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico®; died before Feb 1805. He married (1) Barbara
Trujillo on 1 Nov 1787 in Our Lady of Guadalupe Church, Pojoaque, New
Mexico'"’; born about 1771 daughter of Pedro Trujillo and Josefa Gomez del
Castillo; died before Apr 1799. He married (2) Juana Maria Montoya on 27 Apr
1799 in Jemez, New Mexico daughter of Francisco Montoya and Manuela Rojo;

she was born about 1783.

Marriage Notes for Juan Borrego and Juana Montoya:

1799, April 27 (no. 2), Jemez. Juan Borrego (39) of San Isidro, widowed of Barbara Trujillo,
son of Diego Borrego and Francisca Gurulé, and Juana Montoya (16) of the same place, daughter
of Francisco Montoya and Manuela Rojo. Witnesses: Tomas Chaves (79), Salvador Sandoval
(67), Antonio Alberto  (60), Diego Montoya (39), Juan Lucero (49), Felipe Rodriguez (51).
[Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 237]




68 iii. Ana Maria Borrego, born about 1765 in San Felipe, New Mexico; died before
Apr 1821. She married Jose Antonio Trujillo on 24 Aug 1785 in Santa Cruz de
la Cafiada Church, New Mexico’’ son of Diego Trujillo and Juana Martin; born
about 1768.

[Angela’s note] Olmsted's research does not show this daughter, yet baptism records of her
children identify the parents and the grandparents.

69 iv. Jose Ygnacio Borrego, baptized 15 Dec 1768 in Jemez, New Mexico™.

70 v. Maria Dionisia Borrego, baptized 13 Jan 1771 in Bernalillo, New Mexic067; died
before 1821. She married Antonio Damasio Trujillo on 5 May 1785 in Santa
Cruz de la Cafiada Church, New Mexico’”*; born in Potrero, New Mexico son of
Blas de Candelaria Trujillo and Maria Rosa Martin; he died before 1821.

71 vi. Maria Juliana Borrego, baptized 25 Dec 1772 in Bernalillo, New Mexico™; died
before Oct 1830. She married Jose Guadalupe Martin on 5 Nov 1786 in Santa
Cruz de la Canada Church, New Mexico son of Salvador de Orta Martin and
Maria 1\/6[9anuela Trujillo’’#; he was baptized 12 Sep 1759 in Chimayo, New
Mexico ™.

Marriage Notes for Maria Borrego and Jose Martin:

1786, Nov. 9 (no. 32), Santa Cruz. Jose Guadalupe Martin (24), Espafiol of S. Buenaventura de
Chimayo, son of Salvador Martin and Maria Manuela Trujillo, and Maria Juliana Borrego (13),
daughter of Diego Vasquez Borrego and Francisca Gurulé. Witnesses: Nicolas Ortega (50),
Francisco Antonio Gonzales (24), Felipe Cordova (23), Joaquin Valencia (48), all Espanoles.
[Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 1115]

72 vii. Maria del Carmen Borrego, baptized 26 Jul 1775 in Bosque Grande, New
Mexico”’. She married Antonio Jose Mestas before 1795.

73 wviii. Francisco Antonio Borrego, born 29 Aug 1777 and baptized 4 Sep 1777 in San
Juan, New Mexico”’. He married Maria Salome Padilla on 9 May 1817 in Santa
Fe, New Mexico’”’ daughter of Diego Padilla and Rita Avila.

[Angela’s note] Research by Jose Esquibel clarifies the confusion Olmsted made with the
Borrego line: "Francisco Vasquez Borrego, son of Don Diego, was born circa 1737 (age given as
8 in 1745) and died at San Antonio de Quemado on 10 October 1789 (burial at Santa Cruz). He
was married with Francisca Victoria Mora and had at least eleven children. Diego Felipe
Vasquez Borrego, son of don Diego, was born circa 1738 (age given as 7 in 1745). He was
married with Maria Francisca Gurulé, born on 9 October 1743, Albuquerque, daughter of
Antonio Gurulé and Antonia Quintana. This couple settled at El Potrero near Chimay¢6 and had at
least eight children." Source: Jose Esquibel's website "Beyond Origins of New Mexico
Families" (http:/pages.prodigy.net/bluemountainl/beyondorigins.htm)

74 ix. Ursula Borrego, baptized 17 Jul 1799 in Santa Clara, New Mexico’.

11. Manuelita* Gurulé (Antonio®, Santiago®, Yvon' Grolet) was born about 1746 in
Albuquerque, New Mexico. She married Juan Paulin Saiz on 6 May 1761 in Albuquerque,



New Mexico’’% son of Francisco Saiz and Juana de Herrera. He was born about 1724, and died
before 13 Apr 1780 in Albuquerque, New Mexico 7,

Marriage Notes for Manuelita Gurulé and Juan Saiz:

1761, May 6 (no. 23), Albuquerque. Juan Paulin Saiz (38), son of Captain Francisco Saez,
deceased, and Juana de Herrera, and Manuela Gurulé Olvin (15), Espaiola, daughter of Captain
Antonio Gurulé Olvin, deceased, and Antonia Quintana. Witnesses: Felipe Jacobo Romero,
notary; Nicolas Montoya (41), Tadeo Garcia de Noriega (40). [Prenuptial Investigations - NM
Roots Ltd., page 1659]

Children of Manuelita Gurulé and Juan Paulin Saiz are:
75 i. Maria de los Dolores’ Saiz, baptized 19 Apr 1772 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico”. She married Pedro Nolasco Martinez on 20 Oct 1787 in Church of
San Antonio de Sandia, New Mexico son of Vicente Martinez and Antonia Rita
Lovato; he was born about 1766 in Alameda, New Mexico.

Marriage Notes for Maria Saiz and Pedro Martinez:

1786, Jun. 8 (no. 13), Albuquerque. Pedro Nolasco Martinez (20) of Alameda, son of Vicente
Martinez and Antonia Rita Lobato, both deceased, and Maria Dolores Saez (15), daughter of
Paulin Saez, deceased, and Maria Manuela Gurulé. Witnesses: Jose Antonio Valencia (52) and
Cristobal Gamboa (56) of the Sandia district; Juan Antonio Torres (38) of Albuquerque, Juan
Antonio Lucero (37) of Alameda. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 1171]

76 ii. Miguel Antonio Bonifacio Saiz, baptized 14 May 1775 in Albuquerque, New
Mexico”.

77 iii. Juan Bautista Saiz, born between 1776 - 1778 in Alameda, New Mexico’®. He
married (1) Maria Gertrudis Torres on 1 Dec 1810 in San Felipe de Neri Church,
Albuquerque, New Mexico”” daughter of Jose Torres and Maria Trinidad Trujillo
and died before Aug 1841. He married (2) Barbara Antonia Salazar on 20 Aug
1841 in Church of San Antonio de Sandia, New Mexico’’® who was widowed of
Matias Gutierrez at the time of this marriage. He then married (3) Maria Ramona
Sanchez on 12 Jun 1843 in Albuquerque, New Mexico’”’ daughter of Jose de
Jesus Sanchez and Maria Gregoria Rael and was widowed of Juan Salazar at the
time of this marriage. Maria Ramona Sanchez born about 1803 in Alameda, New
Mexico.

Marriage Notes for Juan Saiz and Maria Sanchez:

1843, Jun 12 (no. 59), Albuquerque. Juan Bautista Saiz (45) of Alameda, widowed in first
marriage of Maria Gertrudis Torres, and Maria Ramona Sanchez (40) of the same place, widow
in first marriage of Juan Salazar. Witnesses: Rafael Sandoval (56), widower, Juan Griego (45),
married, both of Alameda. [Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 1663]

78 iv. Jose Reymundo Saiz, born 9 Feb 1779 and baptized 12 Feb 1779 in Albuquerque,
New Mexico’.

79 v. Maria Teresa Saiz, born in Jemez, New Mexico. She married Pedro Antonio
Valdez on 8 Oct 1845 in Church of San Antonio de Sandia, New Mexico’? son



of Jose Valdez and Gertrudis Chaves ; he was baptized 16 Feb 1812 in Bernalillo,
New Mexico”.

Marriage Notes for Maria Teresa Saiz and Pedro Antonio Valdez:

1845, Sep. 18 (nos. 35, 48), Sandia. Pedro Antonio Valdes (33) of Bernalillo, son of Jose Valdes
and Gertrudis Chaves, and Teresa Saiz (30 plus) - her surname written Saenz at first - from the
Jemez parish now living in this one parish, d. of Juan Saiz and Gertrudis (illegible). Groom
requests dispensation from 3rd with 4th degree consanguinity, besides 1st degree affinity rising
from copula illicita; his brother had lived with bride for a time, by whom she had one child,
while he himself, blinded by passion, had lived with her for 6 yrs; during this time she had some
children whom he acknowledged as his own. Witnesses: Pedro Sisneros, notary; Rafael
Carvajal (60), Felipe Martinez (50), Juan Cristobal Salazar (63), and Juan Jose Silva (68), all of
Bermnalillo and who attested to the scandals. Certification of Groom's baptism at Sandia, Feb. 16,
1812, with grandparents Antonio Jose Sisneros and Maria Concepcion Salazar. Dispensation
granted by visiting Bishop Zubiria at Isleta, Oct. 4, 1845. Relationship presented as follows:

Jose (Josefa?) Chaves

Elena Gurule (sisters) Manuela Gurule
Gertrudis Chavez (1st cousins) Juan Saiz
Pedro Valdes (2nd cousins) Teresa Saiz

[Prenuptial Investigations - NM Roots Ltd., page 2021]
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